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AIR TRAFFIC INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

FAA Responses to Industry Comments

Regarding the Draft Statement of Work


SOW SECTION 1.0 

Question #1 - The second sentence states that “The purpose of this acquisition…”  Is the effort to “accomplish” or is it to “augment and assist?”

Response #1 – The effort required under this SOW is to assist the FAA in accomplishing training and related services.  Therefore, the second sentence of SOW section 1.0 shall be revised to read “The proposed acquisition will seek a Contractor to assist the FAA in accomplishing training and training related services necessary to achieve and ……”

Recommendation #2 - Suggest the wording be changed to add “Non-Controller/Non-FAA Groups”. This will enable tasking for Flight Data courses or courses for FAA Administrative staff.

Response #2 – As a result of the aforementioned recommendation, the second paragraph, eighth bullet of SOW Section 1.0 shall be revised to read “(8) Providing training to non-controller/non-FAA groups, as required”.

SOW SECTION 2.3

Question #1 - Normally the Course Design Guide is not the initial document.  Please explain the process.

Response #1 – The SOW states the Course Design Guide is an initial step in course development, not the initial document.  In an attempt not to influence the Offeror’s technical proposal, the Government will not explain the Course Design Process.

Question #2 – Under the definition for instructional objective, is the word “minimum” synonymous with “standard”?

Response #2 – Yes.

Question #3 - Under the definition for laboratory problem, is the word “problem” synonymous with “scenario”?

Response #3 – Yes. 

Question #4 - Under the definition of quota, what is minimum quota?

Response #4 – There is no reference to minimum quota within the SOW.

Question #5 - The definition for Remote/Pilot Operator (RPO) refers to paragraph 1.1.1.  Where is it specified?


Response #5 – Reference to paragraph 1.1.1 was a typographical error.  All references to paragraph 1.1.1 will be revised to reference paragraph 4.10.3.

Question #6 - Under the definition for standard shift, is the “eight and one-half”, eight hours of work with 30 minutes for lunch?

Response #6 – Yes.

Question #7 - “Over the Shoulder Reviews” have been replaced by “Technical Discussions”.  Suggest this term be changed to “Periodic Performance Evaluation” as outlined in 4.9.2.

Response #7 – All references to “Over the Shoulder Review” will be replaced with “Performance Review”.

SOW SECTION 3.0

Question #1 – Is FAA Order 3000.6B the most current update?

Response #1 – The reference to FAA Order 3000.6B will be replaced with a reference FAA Order 3000.22.  SOW Sections 3.0, 4.11.1, 8.6, 8.7.6 and 8.7.7 will be updated accordingly.

Question #2 - FAA Order 3120.4J includes IPGs for each option.  Are the EP12-0-1E and TP 12-0-1C different documents and do they contain different training instructions?

Response #2 – No.  SOW references to documents EP 12-0-1E and TP 12-0-1C will be revised to reference FAA Order 3120.4J, Appendices 4 and 6, respectively. 

Recommendation #3 - Recommend the addition of FAA Order 7110.65 to paragraph 3.0.

Response #3 – As a result of the aforementioned recommendation, SOW Section 3.0 will be revised to include FAA Order 7110.65.

Recommendation #4 - EP 12-0-1E, En Route IPG has been replaced by Appendix 4 of Order 3120.4 and TP 12-0-1C, Terminal IPG has been replaced by Appendix 6 of Order 3120.4.

Response #4 – As a result of the aforementioned recommendation, documents EP 12-0-1E and TP 12-0-1C will be revised to reference FAA Order 3120.4J, Appendices 4 and 6, respectively.

SOW SECTION 4.2

Clarification #1 - In this paragraph, the Government indicates that “… they shall assist and augment a cadre of FAA instructors.”  Later in that same paragraph, the Government indicates that “All learning activity, course development, course maintenance and revision, instruction, and media support work… will be performed by Contractor personnel…”. Please clarify the role of Contract instructors.

Response #1 – The role of Contract instructors is to assist the FAA, as detailed in Section 8.0, “Specific Tasks”.  After further review, Section 4.2, second paragraph, last sentence will be revised to state “…support work required by the FAA….”.

Question #2 - Last sentence, paragraph one.  What percentage is prescribed for teaching vs. administration?

Response #2 – The FAA has not determined specific percentages for teaching and administration.  However, workload projections will be provided with the Screening Information Request (SIR).

Question #3 - Last sentence, paragraph two.  Define “learning activity” and “media support”?

Response #3 – Learning activity includes all classroom and laboratory time and the reference to media support will be deleted.  Therefore, paragraph 4.2 will be revised to read “All learning activity, course development, course maintenance and revision, instruction and support work required by the FAA will be performed by Contractor personnel, as prescribed in individual NTRs, issued by the FAA.

SOW SECTION 4.3

Question #1 - Is the draft Quality Control Plan referenced in paragraph 4.3 required to be submitted with the proposal?

Response #1 – Yes.

Question #2 - What are optimal numbers and what constitutes wasting valuable resources?

Response #2 – For purposes of clarification, the statement “how the Contractor plans to ensure that optimal numbers of resources will be applied to this effort, without wasting resources” will be deleted and replaced with “Contractor management strategies ensuring the most cost effective use of resources”.

SOW SECTIONS 4.3 AND 6.4

Clarification #1 - These paragraphs both discuss the Quality Control Plan.  Paragraph 4.3 says the final plan is due at “the start of performance”.  Paragraph 6.4 states the final plan is due “within 30 calendar days after contract award”.  Please clarify the due date for this plan.

Response #1 – The Final Quality Control Plan is due 30 days after contract award.  In Section 4.3, the start of performance is considered “Commencement of Instructional Services”, as detailed in Section 4.19.1.

SOW SECTION 4.4

Question #1 - When does the contractor become aware of the plan and the associated processes?

Response #1 – After further review, SOW Section 4.4 will be deleted.

SOW SECTION 4.5.2

Question #1 - This paragraph states that the CO may require “security and/or suitability investigation of Contractor personnel”.  Will the Government assume the cost for any security investigations?

Response #1 – Yes.

SOW SECTION 4.5.5

Question #1 - Parts A & B need clarification including the definition of growth and experiential training and the phrase “self-directed employees ”.  Is the contractor responsible for developing programs for new and evolving training techniques and technology?

Response #1 – After further review, SOW Section 4.5.5 will be deleted.

Question #2 - In Part B, does this mean a budget should be included for educational incentives – personal and professional growth including academic graduate programs and alternative learning experiences?

Response #2 – After further review, SOW Section 4.5.5 will be deleted.

Question #3 - In Part B, when is the development program submitted to FAA for approval – prior to contract, on an annual basis?  Who incurs cost associated with the requirement?

Response #3 – After further review, SOW Section 4.5.5 will be deleted.

Question #4 - In this paragraph a program is mandated that provides instructors with instruction or other guidance that might result in their ability to assist in producing FAA employees which are better suited to participate in the work place environment. Is this envisioned as a TASK H activity or a Contractor funded activity?

Response #4 – After further review, SOW Section 4.5.5 will be deleted.

SOW SECTION 4.5.6

Question #1 - Who is the final authority – the TO or the CO?

Response #1 – The Contracting Officer and Technical Officer will coordinate and review, however, the Contracting Officer has the final authority.  Therefore, Section 4.5.6 will be deleted in its entirety and replaced to state “The Contractor shall present all pertinent qualification credentials of Key Personnel to the CO, or the authorized TO, for the subsequent review, approval or disapproval.  The CO shall have the final approval authority as to acceptance of all Contractor nominated managerial, supervisory and instructor personnel for the positions of this contract.  The CO may waive the qualifications in accordance with the Exceptions to Qualifications provisions below, which is applicable to all tasks.”

Question #2 – Define key personnel.

Response #2 – Key personnel will be the Contract Director and Contract Site Supervisors.  It is anticipated that the resultant SIR will include a clause entitled “Key Personnel”.

SOW SECTION 4.5.6.1

Question #1 - What positions are you referring to?

Response #1 – SOW Section 4.5.6.1, “Exceptions to Qualifications”, refers to all positions. 

SOW SECTION 4.5.7.1

Question #1 - In reference to the “no response” from the FAA and the contractor’s ability to proceed in hiring, what is the process for feedback on hiring?

Response #1 – If no response is received from the FAA, the FAA will not provide any further feedback and the Contractor may proceed with hiring.

Question #2 - Define culturally diverse.  Are there guidelines for acceptable instructor recruitment plan in order to provide for a culturally diverse workforce?

Response #2 – For purposes of clarification, the first sentence will be revised to state “The Contractor shall develop and maintain an acceptable instructor recruitment plan”.

SOW SECTION 4.5.7.2

Comment #1 - This paragraph provides the Government the right of rejection of any Contractor candidates, allowing the Government up to 10 days to respond to candidates.  With a 30-day transition period, this does not provide sufficient time for the Contractor to find additional suitable candidates, provide orientation, and begin instructional services, if the Government rejects a candidate.

Response #1 – After further review, the transition period will be extended to 60 calendar days and all references will be revised accordingly.

SOW SECTION 4.9.1

Question #1 - Paragraph 4.9.1 indicates the distribution of the Annual Performance Evaluation but does not include the CSS or Contract Director.  Will these individuals be included in distribution and will they be given the opportunity to discuss contract performance with the FLTO at times other than the once annual evaluation?

Response #1 – A copy of the Annual Performance Evaluation will be provided to the Contract Director.  Therefore, the second and third sentences of SOW Section 4.9.1 will be deleted in their entirety and replaced with “The original copy of the evaluation shall be forwarded to the CO via the ATM of the site, the RPOC and the authorized TO.  One copy of the evaluation shall be retained by the FTLO at each facility.  One copy of the evaluation shall be forwarded to the Contract Director via the CSS”.  Discussion of contract performance at times other than the annual evaluation is addressed in SOW Section 4.9.2.1.  

Question #2 - When will the contractor receive a copy of the evaluation tool?  Is this a standard form?

Response #2 – It is the intent of the Government to provide a copy of the evaluation tool to the Contract Site Supervisor within 30 calendar days of the completion of each calendar year. The Contract Site Supervisor will be required to forward a copy to the Contract Director.  It is not a standard form.

SOW SECTION 4.9.1.1

Question #1 – Corrective Action Plan – What is a reasonable amount of time as determined by the FAA?
Response #1 – Ten calendar days has been determined a reasonable time by the FAA.  Section 4.1.1.1 will be revised to read “…..deficiencies have been identified, the Contractor shall, within 10 calendar days, submit to the FTLO……”

Question #2 - What feedback does the FAA give on the Corrective Action Plan, if any?
Response #2 – The FAA will provide written notification within 30 days if the Corrective Action Plan is acceptable.  Therefore, SOW Sections 4.9.1.1 and 4.9.2.1 will be revised to include the following statement:  “If the Corrective Action Plan is considered unacceptable by the FAA, the Contractor will receive a written notification from the FAA within 30 days.  If no response is issued by the FAA within that period, the Corrective Action Plan is considered acceptable”.

SOW SECTION 4.9.2

Question #1 - What is the Contract Supervisor’s role in the Periodic Performance Evaluation?

Response #1 – The Contract Site Supervisor has no role in the Periodic Performance Evaluation.

SOW SECTION 4.9.5

Question #1 - Provide clarification for sentence 4 which states “The Contractor shall, at its own expense, attempt to correct these deficiencies.”  Does this mean government equipment and space cannot be used?

Response #1 – No.  Government equipment and space may be used as provided in SOW Section 4.2, second paragraph, second sentence.  However, any additional costs incurred by the Contractor to correct noted deficiencies will be the responsibility of the Contractor.

Question #2 - Who determines the plan of improvement?

Response #2 – The Contractor determines the plan of improvement and, as stated in SOW Section 4.9.5, shall attempt to correct these deficiencies at their own expense.  

Question #3 - Clarify desired performance level.  

Response #3 – The desired performance level is what will be specified in the Performance Deficiency Notification.

Question #4 - Define “reasonable amount of time” given to correct the deficiency.  

Response #4 – A reasonable amount of time will be defined by the FAA on a case-by-case basis depending upon circumstances.

Question #5 - Does the contractor have any input into the decisions associated with determining deficiencies?

Response #5 – No.  The Government retains sole discretion in regard to the determination and notification of Contractor performance deficiencies.

SOW SECTION 4.10

Question #1 – This paragraph indicates that “… costs incurred for training an instructor or RPO after 120 days will be borne by the Contractor… “  Does this mean 120 after start of contract performance or 120 days after hiring the instructor?

Response #1 – SOW Section 4.10 will be revised to read “All classroom instructors, laboratory instructors and RPOs, involved in qualification training shall be certified using the criteria outlined in subsequent paragraphs with certification completed within 60 calendar days of reporting for duty.  If qualification training is anticipated to extend beyond 60 days after reporting for duty, a written waiver must be requested from the TO”.

Comment #2 – This paragraph says instructors must be certified in 120 days, paragraph 4.19.1 says total performance of all requirements in no more than 30 days.  If a new contractor is selected, it would certainly pick up all incumbent instructors after reviewing their performance.  However, if 120 days is allowed for replacement personnel, it may be difficult to meet the 30-day requirement.  A 30-day transition period does not seem sufficient time for this requirement.

Response #2 – SOW Sections 4.10 and 4.19.1 will be revised to allow for a 60-day transition period.

Question #3 - Are there guidelines for “high level of instructional competency” and “degree of standardization and consistency ”?  Again, reference is made to reasonable time.  Please define reasonable time.  The second paragraph states that instructors must be certified by a currently certified instructor or appropriate supervisor.  Are these FAA individuals or contractor?  Please restate the last sentence, last paragraph.  The sentence is unclear.

Response #3 – For purposes of clarification, SOW Section 4.10 will be deleted in its entirety and replaced with “All classroom instructors, laboratory instructors and RPOs, involved in qualification training shall be certified using the criteria outlined in subsequent paragraphs with certification completed within 60 calendar days of reporting for duty.  If qualification training is anticipated to extend beyond 60 days after reporting for duty, a written waiver must be requested from the TO”.

For the purposes of ascertaining what is a reasonable amount of time, refer to question and response #4 in SOW Section 4.9.5.  Certified instructors may be FAA or Contractor employees.

SOW SECTIONS 4.10.1 and 4.10.2

Question #1 - Please clarify “One full class”.

Response #1 – A class start date to date of completion constitutes one full class.

Question #2 - Please specify the form used to document certification of instructor.  What documentation form is used; is it standard?

Response #2 – The certification forms for classroom instructor and simulation instructor are 3120-28 and 3120-27, respectively.

Question #3 - Reference is made to the wording, “Portions of area rating tests or other tests may be used…”  Is the treatment the same or standard?

Response #3 – For the purposes of clarification, the sentence stating “Portions of area rating tests or other tests may be used, however, the intent is to test the instructor trainee on information pertinent to the sectors they will teach” will be replaced with “The intent is to test the instructor trainee on information pertinent to sectors they will teach”.

SOW SECTION 4.10.3

Question #1 - Is there a standard evaluation process?

Response #1 – The evaluation process is delineated in Section 4.10.3.

Question #2 - Are the problems the same or will they increase in difficulty?

Response #2 - The simulation problems in training increase in difficulty.

SOW SECTION 4.10.4.1

Question #1 - Please define “formally trained” and “state-of-the-art adult learning techniques”.

Response #1 – After further review, references to “formally trained” and “state-of-the-art adult learning techniques” will be deleted.

SOW SECTION 4.10.4.2

Question #1 - Who is the responsible monitor?

Response #1 – References to the responsible monitor will be revised to make reference to the FTLO as the approval authority.

SOW SECTION 4.10.4.3

Question #1 - This paragraph requires 50% of instructors be certified in BCLS.  Is this requirement per facility or for the entire contract?

Response #1 – After further review, SOW Section 4.10.4.3 will be deleted.

Question #2 - May the contractor attend FAA courses on this subject?  Who is responsible for the cost associated with this requirement?

Response #2 – After further review, SOW Section 4.10.4.3 will be deleted.

Recommendation #3 - We assume the intent of this paragraph is to ensure the availability of a CPR trained individual in the training whenever training is being conducted. As an alternative, we suggest that each CSS be required to schedule at least one contract employee on duty, during all specified training hours, that is certified in Basic Cardio Life Support (BCLS), or equivalent.

Response #3 – After further review, SOW Section 4.10.4.3 will be deleted.

SOW SECTION 4.11

Question #1 - This paragraph states that “The Contractor shall use state-of-the-art adult learning techniques for analysis, design, development and implementation of training programs”.  Inclusive of paragraph 4.11.1, would core materials be applicable to all ARTCC’s and all Terminal facilities developed off-site then adapted and approved at local facilities be considered acceptable?

Response #1 – It is anticipated that there will be no contract provisions for Contractors to work “off-site” to develop core materials.

SOW SECTION 4.12

Question #1 – These paragraphs identified the process to implement FAA identified changes to training materials and delivery systems.  What will be the process for the Contractor to identify and implement, with FAA approval, new training materials and delivery systems?

Response #1 – The FAA shall notify the Contractor of any new training materials, delivery systems and implementation schedules, as prescribed in SOW Section 4.12.

Question #2 – Who is responsible for the cost associated with this requirement?

Response #2 – The FAA is responsible for the cost associated with this requirement.

SOW SECTION 4.13.1

Question #1 - Does the Government participate in an annual accreditation program to support American Council on Education (ACE) credit recommendations (paragraph 4.13.1)?  Will the contractor’s involvement in the support of this effort be specified in the final SOW?

Response #1 – After further review, SOW Section 4.13.1 will be deleted.

Question #2 - Are there specific guidelines that speak to “the revision” of courses to meet the requirements of the Council on Occupational Education and ACE?

Response #2 – After further review, SOW Section 4.13.1 will be deleted.

SOW SECTION 4.14

Question #1 - Does the contractor prepare a formal report?

Response #1 – Each facility utilizes a locally developed progress report.

SOW SECTION 4.15.1

Question #1 - What constitutes “repeat training”?  Missing one day of class?

Response #1 – To provide further clarification, Section 4.15.1, “Authorization to Repeat Training” will be deleted in its entirety and replaced to state “The Contractor shall not authorize a student to repeat any type of training.  Student requests to repeat any type of training must be directed to the FTLO for written approval”.

SOW SECTION 4.16

Question #1 - This paragraph requires the Contractor to notify the TO on an annual basis for those Contractor personnel in need of any Government provided training courses to ensure Contractor compliance with the SOW.  Will any costs be incurred by the Contractor for these courses?

Response #1  - No cost will be incurred by the Contractor for approved Government provided training courses.

Question #2 - Please define “government provided”.

Response #2 – Government provided refers to training provided by the Government to the Contractor at no cost to the Contractor.

SOW SECTION 4.16.1

Question #1 - Please clarify the term “ensure sufficient quotas”?

Response #1 – The intent of the term “ensure sufficient quotas” is that the Government will ensure that sufficient slots are available for Contractor training.  See SOW Section 4.16.

SOW SECTIONS 4.16.1, 8.2.1.1 and 8.8.2.1.2

Question #1 - These paragraphs refer to SOW paragraph 1.1.  What is the correct SOW reference paragraph?

Response #1 – The correct reference paragraph is 4.10.

SOW SECTION 4.16.2

Question #1 - Define “extended absence”?  Does the length of time change?

Response #1 – The FTLO, on a case-by-case basis, will determine the definition of extended absence.  The length of time could vary, based upon specific circumstances.

SOW SECTIONS 4.17.1, 4.17.2, 8.3.10, 8.4.10, 8.5.7, 8.6.9, 8.7.9, 8.8.4 and 8.9

Question #1 - These paragraphs state the Contractor personnel may be required to perform additional services not delinated in previous SOW section,…..  Will provisions be made for the Contractor to notify the authorized TO, within XX calendar days, of any contractual impacts that would be incurred to perform these additional tasks?

Response #1 – Additional services will be requested by Notice of Training Requirement (NTR), Appendix 4, and agreed to in writing by the Contractor Site Supervisor (CSS).  As stated in the NTR footnote, the Contractor is afforded the opportunity to submit concerns within 3 days of receipt of the NTR.  Out of scope work is not authorized under this effort unless modified in writing by the Contracting Officer.  All work addressed in NTRs will be work within the scope of the requirement.

SOW SECTION 4.19.1

Question #1 - This paragraph requires the Contractor to provide a FAA orientation.  Is the Orientation referred to in Section 4.19.1 the Contractor’s FAA Orientation or Orientation by the FAA Transition Team?

Response #1 – SOW Section 4.19.1 refers to three separate orientations that will be conducted by the Contractor during the initial transition period (Initial Orientation for Contract Management Staff, Operational Orientation and Training for Contract Supervisory Personnel and Operational Orientation and Training for Contract Non-Supervisory Personnel).  Section 4.5.9, “FAA Orientation”, details the Contractor’s specific responsibilities regarding orientation of Contractor personnel.

The “orientation” provided by the Transition Team is not a specifically scheduled event, but will occur as necessary and as stated in SOW Section 4.19.1, third paragraph, second sentence.  The Government will provide a Transition Team, headed by the authorized TO, to provide technical and administrative orientation to Contractor personnel, familiarize Contractor personnel with required services and provide other guidance and assistance, which is mutually identified by the Government and the Contractor.

SOW SECTIONS 4.19.1, 4.19.2 and 8.1.2.2

Question #1 - Does the 30 days in 4.19.1 apply to transition of new facilities in 4.19.2 and 8.1.2.2?

Response #1 – No.  Paragraph 4.19.1 describes the “initial” transition period after contract award.

SOW SECTION 4.19.2

Question #1 - Will you give an example of an additional Facility?

Response #1 – An example of an additional facility is an FAA facility that the agency determines has a need for training or related services, as described in paragraph 8.1.2.2.  Examples of additional facilities may include but are not limited to the Potomac Consolidated TRACON (PCT) in Manassas, Virginia, Northern California TRACON and Northern Georgia TRACON.

SOW SECTION 4.20

Question #1 - Is there any arbitration process?  Is “just cause” determined?

Response #1 – This information will be revealed and addressed in the terms and conditions of the competitive SIR.  The resultant SIR will contain provisions and the rights of arbitration.  See AMS clauses 3.9.1-1, “Disputes and 3.9.1-3, “Protest”. 

Question #2 - If any option period within the resultant contract is not exercised, how much advance notice is given? 

Response #2 –  It is the intent of the Government to include option clauses AMS 3.2.4-34 and AMS 3.2.4-35 in the resultant SIR.  The notification process for exercise of options are outlined therein.  
SOW SECTION 6.2

Recommendation #1 - Several reports are requested based upon “original budgeted cost of work to date categorized by each facility and within each task requirement by labor category”. Clarification related to the basis of this report and when this budget is to be developed should be provided. Also, given the dynamic nature of training requirements, developing and updating such a budget may prove to be greater than the benefit derived.

Response #1 – As a result of the aforementioned recommendation, the following statements contained within SOW Section 6.2 will be deleted: “Original budgeted cost of work to date categorized by each facility and within each task requirement by labor category.  Cost variances (Both positive and negative).  For negative variances, Contractor’s plan of action and milestones to correct each variance.  Forecast of revised cost estimate and labor hours expended at the end of the current period of performance, categorized by each facility and within each task requirement by labor category.”

SOW SECTION 8.1.2

Question #1 - Normal working hours is defined several ways, i.e., 8 to 5; 7 to 3:30, 8 to 4:30.  Please clarify.

Response #1 – Normal working hours equates to 8.5 hours per day, including a 30 minute lunch period.

Question #2 - Please clarify “Federal holiday weeks”?

Response #2 – A Federal holiday week is a week that contains a Federal holiday.

Recommendation #3 - This paragraph and paragraph 8.1.2.1 seem to be somewhat redundant. Suggest that they be consolidated into a single paragraph.

Response #3 – As a result of the aforementioned recommendation, paragraphs 8.1.2 and 8.1.2.1 have been consolidated.

SOW SECTION 8.1.2.2

Question #1 - When is the “15 days” invoked?

Response #1 – The “15 days” is invoked upon notification of the Government’s intent to add a facility.

SOW SECTION 8.2.1

Question #1 - Is there any “recency” applied to the five years?

Response #1 – No specific “recency” parameters have been identified.  All personnel qualifications will be reviewed by the FTLO on a case-by-case basis.

Question #2 - This paragraph states that “Instructors shall have a minimum of five (5) years CPC air traffic control experience in an air traffic control facility (e.g. Air Route Traffic Control Center (ARTCC), Airport Traffic Control Tower (ATCT), Terminal Radar Approach Control (TRACON)) within the ATC option for which application is made”.  Can applicable DOD, FAR certified controllers with like experiences qualify?

Response #2 – SOW Section 8.2.1 states specifically “Terminal experience must have been at a like-type facility”.  All personnel qualifications will be reviewed by the FTLO on a case-by-case basis.

SOW SECTION 8.2.1.1

Question #1 - This paragraph states, in reference to classroom and laboratory instructors, that “Individuals previously certified, whose certification remains current as of the date of contract award, shall be considered certified”.  Is this also true for RPO’s?

Response #1 – Yes.

SOW SECTION 8.2.4.2

Question #1 - Please clarify this sentence.   Is this one-on-one instructor?  This question also applies to 8.3.4.2. and 8.4.4.2.

Response #1 – No.  The intent is to have all areas of operation supported by a certified instructor.  One instructor may be certified in multiple areas of operation and could support a class consisting of students from more than one area of operation.

SOW SECTION 8.2.7

Question #1 - Please clarify who can perform the evaluation.  In one area “only” is used referencing FAA, however, “certified instructors” are also applicable.  Are “certified instructors” contractors?

Response #1 – Certified instructors may be FAA or Contractor employees.  SOW Sections 8.2.7, 8.3.7 and 8.4.7 will be revised to read “Student Performance: Evaluation of student performance will be in accordance with applicable IPG’s, FAA Orders and evaluation tools (e.g., written tests or graded ATC problems) and shall be performed only by FAA or Contractor certified instructors”.

SOW SECTION 8.2.10

Question #1 - Please define “inherently Governmental functions”.

Response #1 – Reference is made to Office of Management and Budget (OMB) A-76 Circular entitled “Performance of Commercial Activities.  Inherently Governmental functions is defined as functions that are so intimately related to the exercise of the public interest as to mandate performance by Federal employees.

Question #2 - What input does the contractor have in determining “appropriateness”?

Response #2 – The Contractor’s  input, as detailed in the note at the bottom of the Notice of Training Requirements, states that any concerns must be forwarded to the FTLO within three days of receipt of the NTR

SOW SECTION 8.3

Question #1 - Can the Contractor utilize creative instructional techniques such as distant learning and video conferencing?

Response #1 – Creative instructional techniques including but not limited to distant learning and video conferencing requires written approval of the TO.

SOW SECTION 8.3.2

Comment #1 - The acronym “CDRL” contained in this paragraph should be included in paragraph 2.2.

Response #1 – All references to CDRLs will be deleted from this SOW.  In addition, the phrase “…., together with any pertinent items listed in the CDRL, shall constitute the deliverable products under this requirement” has been deleted from SOW Sections 8.3.2, 8.4.2 and 8.5.2.

SOW SECTION 8.5.7

Recommendation #1 - We feel that Section 8.5.7, Additional Services, will be strengthened if the FAA addresses any intention to task the Contractor to maintain records for such activities as the Liaison and Familiarization Travel Program, OJT, Instructor Currency, and Administrative Files and Direction.

Response #1 – Recommendation remains under consideration.

SOW SECTION 8.6.1

Question #1 - Prerequisite qualifications for the CBIA position described in paragraph 8.6.1 do not appear to support meaningful involvement in conversion of CBI training materials discussed in paragraph 8.6.4.  Please clarify expectations for course conversions and development to CBI delivery methodology.

Response #1 – After further review, the qualifications will be revised to further support the CBIA position.  SOW Section 8.6.1 will be revised to read “Therefore, CBIA shall possess a minimum of 3 years experience as an instructor in the information technology field at the high school level or above, or a minimum of 3 years progressive information technology experience utilizing various types of computer hardware, software and associated peripheral equipment.  These requirements …..”  The expectations for course conversions and development to CBI delivery methodology will be determined on a case-by-case basis by the FTLO.

Question #2 - Please define “data processing field”.

Response #2 – Data processing field is defined as information technology experience utilizing various types of computer hardware, software and associated peripheral equipment.

SOW SECTION 8.7

Question #1 - Are these positions additional to the instructor staff?

Response #1 – Task F is not a “position”.  The instructor labor category can perform Task F.

SOW SECTION 8.7.6

Question #1 – This paragraph requires use of methodology in FAA-STD-028.  Will you require complete documentation of the development process or just use of the methodology?

Response #1 – Documentation of the development process and use of the methodology may be required, and will be determined on a case-by-case-basis by the FTLO. 

SOW SECTION 8.8.1.1

Question #1 - The term “equivalent professional experience” is included in all the Personnel Qualifications paragraphs. Will measurable criteria be provided, or will this be a subjective assessment to be made by the FAA?

Response #1 – Equivalent professional experience is a subjective assessment to be determined by the FAA.

SOW SECTION 8.8.2

Recommendation #1 - Second sentence of the second paragraph states “The Contractor should…”. We suggest this be changed to “The Contractor Shall..”. It is our understanding that all labor hours charged against this proposed contract must be accounted for via an NTR.

Response #1 – As a result of the aforementioned recommendation, SOW Section 8.8.2 will be revised to read “The Contractor shall account separately for personnel hours and funds expended for ongoing administrative time spent supervising Contractor employees, ……”.

SOW SECTION 8.8.2.1

Question #1 - Is there a time for the review process?

Response #1 – After further review and consideration, the time for reviewing qualifications will be established as 10 calendar days.  Therefore, the last two sentences of SOW Section 8.8.2.1 will be deleted in their entirety and replaced to state “CSS personnel will also be considered Key Personnel and fall under the provisions of the clause that is anticipated to be included in Section H of the resultant SIR.  In addition, CSS appointments shall not be made until the FAA facility/Air Traffic Manager (ATM) has had ten (10) calendar days to review the qualifications of potential applicants and provide comments to the Technical Officer, who will make a CSS selection recommendation to the Contracting Officer.  The Contracting Officer must provide written approval to the Contractor before appointment of each CSS”.

SOW SECTION 8.9

Recommendation #1 - A catchall task is always needed and this fills that need. However, given the existence of this paragraph, we suggest the Additional Services paragraph contained in each of the other Tasks descriptions be eliminated.  Also, if it is intended that Operations Rain check, tracking and processing of Familiarization trips and maintenance of training records be accomplished via this Task, we suggest that the Task description be expanded to specifically include them.

Response #1 – Recommendation remains under consideration.

APPENDIX 2

Recommendation #1 - Burbank is no longer a participant in the ATIS program and should be removed from this list.  The mailing address for Dallas/Fort Worth TRACON is: 

Dallas/Fort Worth TRACON (D10)
2400 International Parkway
DFW Airport, TX 75261

Response #1 – As a result of the aforementioned recommendation, Burbank TRACON (B90) will be deleted from and Dallas/Fort Worth TRACON (D10) will be added to Appendix 2.

APPENDIX 3

Question #1 - When does the Government plan to release workload projections (see Appendix 3 to Draft SOW)?

Response #1 – Appendix 3, Workload Projections, will be released with the Screening Information Request (SIR).

General Questions – Public Announcement

Question #1 - In the Public Announcement under Additional Relevant Information you make the following statement: "To be eligible to compete for this procurement, the Offeror must have, as a minimum qualification requirement, ability to cover payroll and other operating and administrative expenses to accommodate Government “in arrears” payments for work performed for a period up to ninety days.  The Government has estimated that $4,000,000.00 is required to cover the aforementioned expenses."  We understand this requirement as advancement against expected receivables. For expenses that are in "in arrears", does the government guarantee payment within the 90 days?

Response #1 – No.  The 90-day period was used as an estimate only for purposes of determining the minimum qualification requirement.

Question #2 - How does the payment language in the Additional Relevant Information section reconcile to FAR Clause 32.908(c)?

Response #2 – Section 348 of the 1996 Department of Transportation and Related Agencies Appropriations Act authorized the Administrator to develop and implement the Federal Aviation 

Administration (FAA) Acquisition Management System (AMS) and also exempted the FAA from Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR).  Consequently, the AMS contains a similar contract clause, AMS 3.3.1-17 entitled “Prompt Payment”.  At this time, it is intended that this clause will be included in the resultant SIR and can be previewed by accessing http://fast.faa.gov.  Attachment A, third page, second paragraph refers to the Offeror’s minimum requirement to be eligible to compete for the upcoming procurement, whereas the Prompt Payment provision states that, if the Government does not pay a proper invoice within the due date, interest penalty shall be paid automatically by the Government.

Question #3 - It is noted that the contract type has not yet been identified.  Is it the FAA’s intention to identify an estimated level of effort for bidding and evaluation purposes or will it be the responsibility of each Offeror to propose the appropriate staffing levels?

Response #3 - Appendix 3, Workload Projections, will be released with the Screening Information Request (SIR), however, contract staffing levels will not be recommended.

General Question – CDRL

Question #1 - Deliverables in Tasks B through G refer to “pertinent items in the CDRL”.  Is this also a requirement for Task A?

Response #1 – No, and all references to CDRLs will be deleted from the SOW.  In addition, the phrase “…, together with any pertinent items listed in the CDRL, shall constitute a deliverable products under this requirement”, will be deleted from SOW Sections 8.3.2, 8.4.2 and 8.5.2.

General Question– Contractor Personnel

Question #1 - Please confirm that no ATIS contractor personnel are required at the Mike Monroney Aeronautical Center in Oklahoma.

Response #1 – The list of proposed facilities are listed in Appendix 1, Affected Air Traffic Facilities, and additional facilities may be added in accordance with SOW Sections 4.19.2 and 8.1.2.2.

General Question – Incumbent Personnel

Question #1 – Will provisions be made for bidders to interview incumbent personnel at the ARTCCs and designated TRACONs?

Response #1 – The Government will not make provisions for potential Offerors to interview the incumbent Contractor’s personnel.

General Question – Security

Question #1 - Instructors certified at the time of contract award are considered certified.  Does the same apply to security levels or will additional security reviews be required?

Response #1 – Security requirements will be addressed in the resultant SIR.

Recommendation – Evaluation Factors

Recommendation #1 - The success of the ATIS program is critically dependent on the retention and morale of the incumbent workforce.  During the transition period, it is vital to the safety and efficiency of air traffic operations that the ATIS contractor continue to provide quality training with no disruption in service.  Accordingly, it is clearly in the best interest of the FAA, the aviation community, and the public that every reasonable effort be made to retain the qualified incumbent workforce to assure the seamless transfer of ATIS work from the incumbent contractor to the successor contractor.

To this end, we recommend that the FAA include in the ATIS solicitation a desired goal that the incumbent workforce be hired with full retention of pay and benefits.  Too often in similar past procurements, winning “Low Ball” contractors reduce price by requiring incumbent employees to accept pay and benefit cuts.  While such an approach may provide some short-term gain, it usually results in a less than productive and disgruntled workforce with attendant loss in the quality of services provided to the Government.  Given that the FAA’s mission is such that it cannot tolerate provision of less than the highest quality of ATIS services, the FAA should take every opportunity to protect the integrity of the incumbent workforce.  We suggest that the FAA consider the following approach:

· Clearly state the FAA’s desire to protect the incumbent workforce and make the Personnel Capture and Retention Plan the Number One evaluation factor

· Provide the average direct labor rate by site to allow competing contractors to use current salary data as a basis for pricing

· In lieu of average salary data, provide a single total number for direct labor for each site; i.e., a DL plug factor for pricing and evaluation purposes only

· Define a minimum acceptable fringe benefit package for incumbents.

Response #1 – Recommendation remains under consideration.

Recommendation #2 – The significant factors in the successful performance of the ATIS Contractor are (1) transition, (2) management experience, (3) training technology understanding, (4) quality assurance and (5) cost.

Given that the successful Offeror will hire many of the incumbent personnel, the primary evaluation factor should be the strength of the Offeror’s transition plan.  There is little value in having Offerors present contingent certifications from individuals stating that they will only work for Company X, because they can only work for the company that makes them a legitimate employment Offeror, i.e., the successful Offeror.

Related experience and past performance in conducting such work should be very important in the evaluation process, however, the experience should be directly relevant and should include management of large (>200 personnel) FAA support contracts over a geographically dispersed area, preferably throughout the FAA Regional structure, and the execution of training initiatives of the same scope and geographic breadth as ATIS.

The Offeror’s participation in the development of future FAA training requirements should be considered.  Offerors should be critically evaluated on their understanding of future NAS modernization plans and the training aspects of those plans.

Contactors should be evaluated on their understanding of training technologies and the lessons learned from the application of training technologies in non-FAA environments.  The successful Offeror should demonstrate experience with the development and delivery of highly effective training initiatives for Government and commercial clients and should show how these experiences can be leveraged to the benefit of the FAA.

The Offeror’s approach to ensuring the highest quality across all sites should be evaluated.  Offerors should be evaluated on their ability to propose a robust, comprehensive Quality Assurance Program that results in continuous improvement of training delivery while minimizing both cost and administrative burden.

Response #2 – Recommendation remains under consideration.

Recommendation #3 – The FAA plans to inject a range of new technologies and decision-support tools into the operational environment over the next five years.  To keep pace with the dynamic changes, the FAA should structure the evaluation factors in the SIR to reflect the importance to this program of an understanding of these changes and the capacity to respond to them.

Response #3 – Recommendation remains under consideration.

Recommendation #4 – The distribution and number of training sites makes recruiting difficult for a medium-sized company.  Most companies, moreover, will simply enlist the incumbent’s staff, with the winning company bringing most, if not all, of that staff onboard after the contract is awarded.  Given this scenario, we believe that the FAA should accord great significance in its evaluation to the transition period and how it is used to prepare for the next contract.  That – and not the ability to bid the incumbent staff – would reflect a measure of a Contractor’s capacity to strengthen the program.

Response #4 – Recommendation remains under consideration.

Recommendation – Key Personnel

Recommendation #1 - As indicated in the ATIS draft, the FAA plans to designate the contractor site supervisors as key personnel.  Further, we assume that the FAA will also require the competing contractors to submit the resumes of such key personnel with their proposals so that they are included in the evaluation.  Unless the FAA takes action to facilitate the interchange of resumes and contingent job offers to take place between the incumbent CSS staff and the competing contractors, undue pressure may be placed on these people that would preclude such interactions.  If this were to occur, the incumbent would have a significant unfair advantage in the procurement.  

We recommend that the FAA encourage all incumbent workforce people be prepared to openly discuss future employment opportunities if approached by competing contractors.  Further, the FAA should encourage the incumbent contractor to allow such discussions to take place.

Response #1 – The Government cannot either encourage or mandate that incumbent workforce be prepared to discuss future employment opportunities.  We recognize this as an industry-to-industry issue.

Recommendation – SEDB Participation

Recommendation #1 - The FAA Small Business Office has established a ten percent (10%) small disadvantaged business subcontracting goal for FY2000 Major Procurement Programs.  In recognition of the FAA’s desire to support socially and economically disadvantaged businesses, we support a requirement for the prime contractor to subcontract at least fifteen percent (15%) of the total contract hours to socially and economically disadvantaged businesses.

Response #1 – Recommendation remains under consideration.

Recommendation #2 – While the FAA has succeeded in meething its goal for 8(a) firms, the agency has fallen short in meeting its objective for small and disadvantaged business participation.  In light of this, we recommend that the FAA set a 15% minimum, as measured in labor hours, for SDB participation on the ATIS procurement.

Response #2 – Recommendation remains under consideration.

Recommendation – Type of Contract

Recommendation #1 - The FAA should consider using a contract with both Firm Fixed Price and Time and Material (T&M) contract line items (CLINS).  A performance incentive provision should be included to reward outstanding performance.  

Fixed Price CLINs would be suitable for acquiring Contractor Site Supervisors (CSS), a core cadre of instructors at each site, and the contract program management staff.  This will require the FAA to specify the training workload by phase for each site.  

T&M CLINS are recommended for tasking over and above the core capability.  The T&M contract structure, when paired with a performance incentive provision, provides  maximum benefit to the government in the following areas:

Specification of Work (Ease, Flexibility) – 

- Broad general task orders can be issued each task year if the Firm Fixed Priced CLINS significantly understate requirements

- Narrow, very specific task orders can be issued for unique tasks that are of limited duration and/or well defined.

Technical Performance – 

 - Contractor must bid adequate fixed rates to accommodate staff excellence.

 - Performance incentive provision motivates contractor to place the best possible employees on the job.  

Cost Growth Risk – 

 - Precludes  offeror attempts to bid unreasonably low indirect expense rates that: (1) won’t provide necessary program infrastructure; (2) provide lower cost by reducing/eliminating employee benefits; and (3) would hamper the offeror’s ability to attract and retain qualified personnel.

 - Contractor assumes virtually all risk of cost performance.

 - Government risk virtually non-existent if labor categories and skill levels are properly/accurately defined and if the government does not disclose the basis for the cost evaluation (skill levels or hours).

Government/Contractor Working Relationship – 

- Costs are well known and understood by all parties.

- Flexibility available to Government with regard to SOW/Technical emphasis

- With a performance incentive provision, relationship is enhanced because contractor is strongly motivated to earn maximum incentive and cost performance is not a factor.

- The incentive provision also helps to communicate the government’s priorities.

Response #1 – Recommendation remains under consideration.

Recommendation #2 – The SOW emphasizes a core set of standardized services, while leaving open the prospect for introducing some innovative instructional approaches and technologies.  We believe that the FAA could best promote both through a procurement that combines a fixed-price approach for the core services and a Time and Materials approach for services that fall outside the cope of the core services.  The idea is to foster economy and control of standardized and well-defined services while enabling modest flexibility to inject new ideas.

Response #2 – Recommendation remains under consideration.

Recommendation – Workforce Projections

Recommendation #1 - We recognize that the primary challenge for the ATIS contractor is to provide a pipeline of fully certified air traffic controllers and maintain their proficiency levels.  We recommend that the FAA provide workforce projections in the solicitation including staffing levels, CPC/Developmental ratio, and recruitment/attrition rates at the covered facilities.

Response #1 – Recommendation remains under consideration.

